
Appleton Redevelopment Authority

City of Appleton

Meeting Agenda - Final

100 North Appleton Street 

Appleton, WI  54911-4799

www.appleton.org

Council Chambers, 6th Floor9:00 AMWednesday, October 25, 2023

Special

1. Call meeting to order

2. Pledge of Allegiance

3. Roll call of membership

4. Approval of minutes from previous meeting

23-1229 ARA Minutes from 10-11-23

ARA Minutes 10-11-23.pdfAttachments:

5. Public Hearing/Appearances

6. Action Items

23-1150 Request to approve the Amendment to the Offer to Purchase from Valley 

Transit dated September 19, 2023 October 20, 2023 for 222 N. Oneida 

Street

222 N Oneida Purchase Extension Memo 10-11-23.pdf

22-0832 - Amendment to Offer to Purchase - RCM Signed.pdf

222 N Oneida Accepted OTP 11-17-22.pdf

Detailed Site Map 222 N Oneida.pdf

222 N Oneida Purchase Extension Memo 10-25-23.pdf

22-0832 - Amendment to Offer to Purchase - RM signed 10-20-2023.pdf

Attachments:

Legislative History 

10/11/23 Appleton Redevelopment 

Authority

held

23-1230 The Appleton Redevelopment Authority may go into closed session 

pursuant to State Statute §19.85(1)(e) for the purpose of discussing real 

estate negotiations regarding the potential sale of 222 N. Oneida Street 

and then reconvene into open session

Page 1 City of Appleton Printed on 10/20/2023

https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=23403
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=898a9f4c-f3e7-48d0-ad09-49c99fa132d8.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=23324
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=73b4f25a-1aea-464d-8104-a027b040be0c.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=1a75a2d3-ff92-4ed8-ad10-7638cb495c2d.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=abdea6f3-b1b0-420a-82c7-ef9060e3fac7.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=d8e7b150-9fdf-41ab-b84b-ba496a7d1f4e.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=4fc652c4-7f0e-42ac-b938-bf4d21716dc6.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=af46066f-c2a4-497c-a4fb-fcfa049f18b3.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=23404


October 25, 2023Appleton Redevelopment Authority Meeting Agenda - Final

7. Information Items

8. Adjournment

Notice is hereby given that a quorum of the Common Council may be present during this 

meeting, although no Council action will be taken.

Any questions about items on this meeting are to be directed to Kara Homan, Director, 

Community and Economic Development Department at 920-832-6468.

Reasonable Accommodations for Persons with Disabilities will be made upon Request 

and if Feasible.

Page 2 City of Appleton Printed on 10/20/2023



100 North Appleton Street 

Appleton, WI  54911-4799

www.appleton.org

City of Appleton

Meeting Minutes - Final

Appleton Redevelopment Authority

9:30 AM Council Chambers, 6th FloorWednesday, October 11, 2023

Time change from 9:00 am to 9:30 am

Call meeting to order1.

Chair Downs called the meeting to order at 9:30 a.m.

Pledge of Allegiance2.

Roll call of membership3.

Downs, Fisher, Brokl, Higgins and Alderperson ThyssenPresent: 5 - 

Van Dyke and StuckExcused: 2 - 

Others present:

Ron McDonald, General Manager Valley Transit

Approval of minutes from previous meeting4.

23-1149 ARA Minutes from 6-14-23

ARA Minutes 6-14-23.pdfAttachments:

Fisher moved, seconded by Higgins, that the Minutes be approved. Roll Call. 

Motion carried by the following vote:

Aye: Downs, Fisher, Brokl, Higgins and Alderperson Thyssen5 - 

Excused: Van Dyke and Stuck2 - 

Public Hearing/Appearances5.

Action Items6.

Page 1City of Appleton



October 11, 2023Appleton Redevelopment Authority Meeting Minutes - Final

23-1151 The Appleton Redevelopment Authority may go into closed session 

pursuant to State Statute §19.85(1)(e) for the purpose of discussing 

real estate negotiations regarding the potential sale of 222 N. Oneida 

Street and then reconvene into open session

The Appleton Redevelopment Authority went into Closed Session at 9:35 a.m.

Fisher moved, seconded by Higgins, to convene in Closed Session be 

approved. Roll Call. Motion carried by the following vote:

Aye: Downs, Fisher, Brokl, Higgins and Alderperson Thyssen5 - 

Excused: Van Dyke and Stuck2 - 

Discussion was held and the Appleton Redevelopment Authority reconvened into 

Open Session at 10:20 a.m.

23-1150 Request to approve the Amendment to the Offer to Purchase from 

Valley Transit dated September 19, 2023 for 222 N. Oneida Street

222 N Oneida Purchase Extension Memo 10-11-23.pdf

22-0832 - Amendment to Offer to Purchase - RCM Signed.pdf

222 N Oneida Accepted OTP 11-17-22.pdf

Detailed Site Map 222 N Oneida.pdf

Attachments:

Fisher moved, seconded by Brokl, that the Amendment to the Offer to 

Purchase be held until the tentatively scheduled Special ARA meeting on 

October 25 at 9:00 am. Roll Call. Motion carried by the following vote:

Aye: Downs, Fisher, Brokl, Higgins and Alderperson Thyssen5 - 

Excused: Van Dyke and Stuck2 - 

Information Items7.

23-1185 2024 City of Appleton Executive Budget

2024 Budget Overview Letter from Mayor.pdf

2024 Executive Budget and Service Plan

Attachments:

This item was presented and discussed.

Adjournment8.

Higgins moved, seconded by Fisher, that the meeting be adjourned at 10:30 

a.m. Roll Call. Motion carried by the following vote:

Aye: Downs, Fisher, Brokl, Higgins and Alderperson Thyssen5 - 

Excused: Van Dyke and Stuck2 - 

Page 2City of Appleton



 

   

 

 
 
TO: Appleton Redevelopment Authority (ARA) 
  
FROM: Matt Rehbein, Economic Development Specialist 
 
DATE: October 11, 2023 

RE: 222 N. Oneida Street – Sale to Valley Transit 

 
 
The Appleton Redevelopment Authority and Valley Transit entered into a sales contract for 
the property at 222 N. Oneida Street on November 17, 2022.  A closure of the DNR case 
on this property is a contingency of this Offer to Purchase.  The existing contract expires 
on October 31, 2023. 
 
Since the Offer to Purchase has been accepted, Valley Transit has continued testing to 
determine the limits of the contamination via samples from existing wells and the drilling of 
two new wells.  The extent of the contamination has not yet been defined, so the DNR 
case is not yet ready to close.  DNR is requesting one more test well be drilled in the right- 
of-way at the northwest corner of Franklin Street and Oneida Street.  Valley Transit has 
authorized the work, and it is estimated that the drilling and sampling should be complete 
within approximately 6 - 7 months.  The attached Amendment to Offer to Purchase reflects 
a closing date no later than December 31, 2024.  This should provide ample time to 
address any environmental considerations and prepare for closing. 
 
In addition to the environmental requirements, Valley Transit will be required to comply 
with the Federal Transit Authority standards to acquire the property.  Language 
acknowledging same has been added to the amendment. 
 
Staff Recommendation: 
 
The Amendment to the Offer to Purchase from Valley Transit dated September 19, 2023 
for 222 N. Oneida Street BE APPROVED by the Appleton Redevelopment Authority. 
 

M E M O R A N D U M 

 

 
“…meeting community needs…enhancing quality of life.” 



Approved by the Wisconsin Real Estate Examining Board 
5-1-22 (Optional Use Date) 7-1-22 (Mandatory Use Date) 

CAUTION: Use a WB-40 Amendment if both Parties will be agreeing to modify the terms of the Offer. 
Use a WB-41 Notice if a Party is giving a Notice which does not require the other Party’s agreement. 

 

1 Buyer and Seller agree to amend the Offer dated November 14, 2022, and accepted on November 17, 2022, 
2 for the purchase and sale of real estate at 222 North Oneida Street, Appleton                                                                    
3   , Wisconsin as follows: 
4 Closing date is changed from 10/31/2023, to 12/31/2024 unless mutually amended by Buyer and Seller. 
5 Purchase price is changed from $ to $ . 
6 Other:   
7   For purposes of clarification, additional contingency 3) as referenced in line 650 of the Offer and attached thereto, is amended as follows:  
8      

9   Parties acknowledge that the Federal Transit Administration (FTA) must approve Buyer’s purchase of the Property. This  
10    Offer shall not be considered a binding offer until various FTA conditions and contingencies are satisfied including, but not 
11    limited to, completing the NEPA process as well as other requirements established in FTA C 5010.1E. As further required 

12    by FTA C 5010.1E Page IV-2, Seller acknowledges its understanding that the terms set forth in the Offer shall be  

13    considered “preliminary and non-binding as to price and other consideration” and are intended to enable Buyer to engage 

14    in preliminary activities to complete the NEPA process.  

15      

16      

17      

18      

19      

20      

21      

22      

23      

24      

25      

26      

27      

28      

29      

30      

31 The attached  is/are made part of this Amendment. 
32 ALL OTHER TERMS OF THE OFFER TO PURCHASE AND ANY PRIOR AMENDMENTS REMAIN THE SAME. 
33 This Amendment is binding upon Seller and Buyer only if a copy of the accepted Amendment is delivered to the Party 
34 offering the Amendment on or before   (Time is of the Essence). Delivery 
35 of the accepted Amendment may be made in any manner specified in the Offer to Purchase, unless otherwise provided 
36 in this Amendment. 
37 NOTE: The Party offering this Amendment may withdraw the offered Amendment prior to acceptance and 
38 delivery as provided at lines 33-34. 

39 This Amendment was drafted by  on   
40 Licensee and Firm  Date 

41 This Amendment was presented by  on   
42 Licensee and Firm  Date 


43 (x)  (x)  
44 Buyer’s Signature  Date  Seller’s Signature Date 
45 Print name   Print name   


46 (x)  (x)  
47 Buyer’s Signature  Date  Seller’s Signature  Date 
48 Print name   Print name   



49 This Amendment was rejected     
50 Party Initials ▲ Date▲ 

WB-40 AMENDMENT TO OFFER TO PURCHASE 

9/19/2023

Ronald C. McDonald





























#

#

#

#

#

#

#

#

#
#

#

#

#

#

#

#

#

#

#

# #

#

#

#

AA

A

AA

A A

A
A

A

D

D

D

D

D
D

(q

(q

(q

!(q

!(q

!(q

!(q

!A
!A

A

A

Small tank remnant
location (5' down)

N 
ON

EI
DA

 ST

E FRANKLIN ST

SB-01
SB-02

SB-03

SB-04SB-05

SB-07 SB-08 / TW-08

SB-09 / TW-09 SB-10 / TW-10

SB-06 / TW-06

TP2

TP1

TP3-N

TP3-S

TP3-E
TP3-W

MW1

MW2

MW3
BASE 1

BASE 2

BASE 3

BASE 4

E SIDEWALL

NORTH WALL

S SIDEWALL

WEST WALL

TP03
TP03ATP05

NW SIDEWALL

BASE WEST

SW BASE

W WALL

SOUTH
WEST WALL

SB-01

SB-6

SB-10

SB-7 SB-08

SB-09

TP01

TP02

10 ft
Excavation

3 ft
Excavation

5 ft
Excavation

MW7

B06 B03

MW6

MW5

MW4

0 15 30
Feet

Property Boundary
Parcels
Excavation Area

A Soil Borings (11/2017)
D Test Pits (6/2018)
# Soil Samples (6/2018)

(q Monitoring Wells (2018)
!(q Monitoring Wells (2019)
!(q Monitoring Wells (2/2023)
!A Soil Borings (2/2023)
A Offsite Soil Boring

NOTES:
1. 2014 Outagamie County orthophoto basemap shown for reference. Existing building was demolished prior to site excavation.
2. Utility locations are approximate and for reference only. Utilities should be field located prior to design, excavation or construction.
3. Cable, electric, fiber optic, gas and telephone utility information from utlity markings (collected via survey and/or UAV imagery).
4. Water, sanitary sewer, storm sewer, traffic, electric, natural gas and fiber optic utility mapping from City of Appleton GIS (1/2023).

1 " = 15 '

Pr
oje

ct 
Ma

na
ge

r:
 

Pr
oje

ct 
En

gin
ee

r:
 

Dr
aw

n B
y:

JC
W

Ch
ec

ke
d B

y:
 

22
2 N

 O
NE

ID
A 

ST
RE

ET
 IN

VE
ST

IG
AT

IO
N

CI
TY

 O
F A

PP
LE

TO
N,

 O
UT

AG
AM

IE 
CO

UN
TY

, W
ISC

ON
SIN

.

PROJECT NO.
R3001534.03
FIGURE NO.
2

SCALE:

DE
TA

ILE
D 

SIT
E M

AP
Da

te:
2/2

0/2
02

3

F:\
EN

VIR
O\

N2
21

4G
17

 (2
22

 N
. O

ne
ida

 Ph
II)\

GI
S\

Clo
su

re 
B1

b D
eta

ile
d S

ite
 M

ap
 23

02
20

.m
xd

Pr
int

ed
: jc

we
is 

2/2
0/2

02
3 3

:02
:26

 P
M

(92
0) 

73
5-6

900
1 S

yst
em

s D
riv

e
Ap

ple
ton

, W
I 54

91
4

ww
w.w

est
wo

od
ps.

com

City Utility Mapping (2023)
Watermain
Sanitary Sewer
Storm Sewer
Traffic (underground)
Fiber Optic
Gas Main
Gas Service
Abandoned Gas Service

O Overhead Electric (secondary)
Underground Electric (primary)
Underground Electric (secondary)

l Transformers
( Electric Structure (underground)



 

   

 

 
 
TO: Appleton Redevelopment Authority (ARA) 
  
FROM: Matt Rehbein, Economic Development Specialist 
 
DATE: October 25, 2023 

RE: 222 N. Oneida Street – Sale to Valley Transit 

 
 
The Appleton Redevelopment Authority and Valley Transit entered into a sales contract for 
the property at 222 N. Oneida Street on November 17, 2022.  A closure of the DNR case 
on this property is a contingency of this Offer to Purchase.  The existing contract expires 
on October 31, 2023. 
 
Since the Offer to Purchase has been accepted, Valley Transit has continued testing to 
determine the limits of the contamination via samples from existing wells and the drilling of 
two new wells.  The extent of the contamination has not yet been defined, so the DNR 
case is not yet ready to close.  DNR is requesting one more test well be drilled in the right- 
of-way at the northwest corner of Franklin Street and Oneida Street.  Valley Transit has 
authorized the work, and it is estimated that the drilling and sampling should be complete 
within approximately 6 - 7 months.  An Amendment to Offer to Purchase reflecting a 
closing date no later than December 31, 2024 was discussed and held at the October 11 
ARA meeting. 
 
Valley Transit will be required to comply with the Federal Transit Authority standards to 
acquire the property.  Language acknowledging same has been added to the amendment, 
along with language providing the ARA with a first right of refusal should the parcel remain 
undeveloped and sold. 
 
Staff Recommendation: 
 
The Amendment to the Offer to Purchase from Valley Transit dated October 20, 2023 for 
222 N. Oneida Street BE APPROVED by the Appleton Redevelopment Authority. 
 

M E M O R A N D U M 

 

 
“…meeting community needs…enhancing quality of life.” 



Approved by the Wisconsin Real Estate Examining Board 
5-1-22 (Optional Use Date) 7-1-22 (Mandatory Use Date) 

CAUTION: Use a WB-40 Amendment if both Parties will be agreeing to modify the terms of the Offer. 
Use a WB-41 Notice if a Party is giving a Notice which does not require the other Party’s agreement. 

 

1 Buyer and Seller agree to amend the Offer dated November 14, 2022, and accepted on November 17, 2022, 
2 for the purchase and sale of real estate at 222 North Oneida Street, Appleton                                                                    
3   , Wisconsin as follows: 
4 Closing date is changed from 10/31/2023, to 12/31/2024 unless mutually amended by Buyer and Seller. 
5 Purchase price is changed from $ to $ . 
6 Other:   
7   For purposes of clarification, additional contingency 3) as referenced in line 650 of the Offer and attached thereto, is amended as follows:  
8      

9   Parties acknowledge that the Federal Transit Administration (FTA) must approve Buyer’s purchase of the Property. This  
10    Offer shall not be considered a binding offer until various FTA conditions and contingencies are satisfied including, but not 
11    limited to, completing the NEPA process as well as other requirements established in FTA C 5010.1E. As further required 

12    by FTA C 5010.1E Page IV-2, Seller acknowledges its understanding that the terms set forth in the Offer shall be  

13    considered “preliminary and non-binding as to price and other consideration” and are intended to enable Buyer to engage 

14    in preliminary activities to complete the NEPA process.  

15      

16    Simultaneous with execution of closing documents, Parties shall enter a separate written agreement wherein Buyer grants  
17    Seller the Right of First Refusal to repurchase the Property in the event Buyer elects to sell the undeveloped Property at  

18     Any point in the future.  

19      

20      

21      

22      

23      

24      

25      

26      

27      

28      

29      

30      

31 The attached  is/are made part of this Amendment. 
32 ALL OTHER TERMS OF THE OFFER TO PURCHASE AND ANY PRIOR AMENDMENTS REMAIN THE SAME. 
33 This Amendment is binding upon Seller and Buyer only if a copy of the accepted Amendment is delivered to the Party 
34 offering the Amendment on or before   (Time is of the Essence). Delivery 
35 of the accepted Amendment may be made in any manner specified in the Offer to Purchase, unless otherwise provided 
36 in this Amendment. 
37 NOTE: The Party offering this Amendment may withdraw the offered Amendment prior to acceptance and 
38 delivery as provided at lines 33-34. 

39 This Amendment was drafted by  on   
40 Licensee and Firm  Date 

41 This Amendment was presented by  on   
42 Licensee and Firm  Date 


43 (x)  (x)  
44 Buyer’s Signature  Date  Seller’s Signature Date 
45 Print name   Print name   


46 (x)  (x)  
47 Buyer’s Signature  Date  Seller’s Signature  Date 
48 Print name   Print name   



49 This Amendment was rejected     
50 Party Initials ▲ Date▲ 

WB-40 AMENDMENT TO OFFER TO PURCHASE 

10/20/2023

Ronald C. McDonald

McDonaRC
Inserted Text


	0000_Agenda
	0001_1_ARA Minutes 10-11-23
	0002_1_222 N Oneida Purchase Extension Memo 10-11-23
	0002_2_22-0832 - Amendment to Offer to Purchase - RCM Signed
	0002_3_222 N Oneida Accepted OTP 11-17-22
	0002_4_Detailed Site Map 222 N Oneida
	0002_5_222 N Oneida Purchase Extension Memo 10-25-23
	0002_6_22-0832 - Amendment to Offer to Purchase - RM signed 10-20-2023



